
10615 GREEN MOUNTAIN FALLS RD ⋅ GREEN MOUNTAIN FALLS, COLORADO  ⋅ 80829 
 

 

 

1. CALL TO ORDER 

2. ADDITIONS, DELETIONS, & CORRECTIONS TO THE AGENDA 

3. MINUTES 
a. Minutes of the June 9, 2020 Regularly Scheduled Meeting  

4. PUBLIC COMMENT 
a. Members of the Public May Address Items Not Germane to the Agenda 

5. NEW BUSINESS 
a. PR2020-10 Single Family Home – Plan Review for 800 SF Residential Construction at 

13105 Iona Trail. Michael Cantrell, Rustic Mountain Builders on Behalf of Cheri Graham, 
Owner 

b. GR2020-01 Single Family Home and Driveway – Grading Permit with Erosion Control Plan 
for 800 SF Residential Construction and Driveway Access at 13105 Iona Trail. Michael 
Cantrell, Rustic Mountain Builders on Behalf of Cheri Graham, Owner 

c. PR2020-11 Deck Replacement – Plan Review for Existing Deck Repairs and Replacement at 
10775 Denver Street. Beth Knox Gomez, Owner.  

d. PR2020-12 Deck Replacement - Plan Review for Replacing 200 SF Deck at 6880 Denver 
Avenue. Quentin M. Trumble, Aletheia Building Co., LLC, on Behalf of Rick and Debra 
Brewster, Owners. 

e. Election of Officers- Vice Chair 

6. UNFINISHED BUSINESS 

7. OTHER BUSINESS 
a. Plan GMF 2019 Comprehensive Plan Implementation – Presentation and Discussion. 

Commissioner Rocco Blasi 
b. Green Mountain Falls Ordinance 2020-03 Amending Chapter 2– Discussion. Commissioner 

Rocco Blasi 

8. ADJOURNMENT 

*Participants can join by using the following Zoom Meeting link and phone number: 
Meeting Link  

Meeting ID: 834 7944 0754 

Passcode: 626264 

Meeting Phone: +1 346 248 7799 

SPECIAL MEETING AGENDA 

Planning Commission 
Tuesday, July 28, 2020 

6:30 p.m. *Zoom Virtual Meeting 

https://www.colorado.gov/pacific/sites/default/files/190628_GMF_ComprehensivePlan_print%20quality.pdf
https://www.colorado.gov/pacific/sites/default/files/07.07.2020%20Agenda%20Packet.pdf
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/83479440754?pwd=N3RCeDBTZzhEcE53aEpmQnlNbUVyUT09


  

Page 1 

MEETING MINUTES 

Planning Commission 
June 9, 2020 

6:30 p.m. Zoom Virtual Meeting  

Commissioners Present: Dick Bratton, Rocco Blasi, Paul Yingling; Mayor Jane Newberry 
Commissioners Absent: N/A 
Board of Trustees Liaison and Recorder: Katharine Guthrie 
GMF Staff: Julia Simmons 

Agenda Item Motion/Discussion 
M/S 

Vote 
RB DB  JN PY 

1. CALL TO ORDER  Chair Bratton called the meeting to order at 6:33 pm 

2. ADDITIONS, DELETIONS, & 
CORRECTIONS TO THE AGENDA 

Move to accept the agenda with the 
addition to the agenda discussion of 
Ordinance 2020-02 as Item 7b. 
Motion carries.  All aye. 

DB/PY aye aye  aye 

3a. May 26, 2020 

Move to accept the minutes as 
submitted.  
Motion carries.  All aye. 

RB/PY aye aye  aye 

4. PUBLIC COMMENT 
No members of the public asked to be recognized for public comment 
 

5. UNFINISHED BUSINESS 

6. NEW BUSINESS 
6a. PR2020-07 SFH Addition and New 

Deck – Plan Review for Single-Family 
Home Addition and New Deck at 
11145 Hondo Avenue. Kimber 
Janney of Kiva Construction, 
Applicant, on Behalf of David 
Douglas and Lamar Matthews, 
Owners. 

Move to approve PR2020-07 SFH 
Addition and New Deck at 11145 
Hondo Avenue on the condition that 
all appropriate GMF business 
licenses are obtained. 
Motion carries.  All aye. 

PY/RB aye aye  aye 

6b. PR2020-08 SFH Addition – Plan 
Review for Single-Family Home 
Addition at 10775 Mountain 
Avenue. Ian Willis and Carolyn 
Lucchetta, Owners. 

Move to approve PR2020-08 SFH – 
Addition at 10775 Mountain Avenue 
with the condition that all 
appropriate GMF business licenses 
are obtained.  
Motion carries.  All aye. 

RB/PY aye aye  aye 

6c. PR2020-09 Accessory Structure 
Rehabilitation – Plan Review of 
Improvements to Existing Garage at 
6992 Colorado Street. Cara M. 
Bennett and Timothy L. McPherson, 
Owners. 

Move to approve PR2020-09 SFH –
Accessory Structure Rehabilitation – 
Plan Review of Improvements to 
Existing Garage at 6992 Colorado 
Street on the condition that all 
appropriate GMF business licenses 
are obtained.  

RB/PY aye aye  aye 



Page 2 

Motion carries.  All aye. 

7. OTHER BUSINESS 
7a. Planning Commission Vacancies – 

Volunteer Interviews for Permanent 
and Alternate Members - Discussion 
and Recommendation to Board of 
Directors on the Following 
Applications: Todd Dixon, Nancy 
Entenza, Sean Ives, Adam Peters, 
Donald Vsetecka 

Move to recommend the 
appointment of two permanent 
Planning Commission members: 
Todd Dixon and Sean Ives. 
Motion carries.  All aye. 
Chair recommended deferring any 
discussion of alternates until they 
are included in an ordinance. 

RB/PY aye aye  aye 

7b. Discussion of Ordinance 2020-02 
Concerning Boards, Committees and 
Commissions 

Commissioners will forward 
individual comments to the Town 
Manager for inclusion in the Board 
packet. 

     

Chair requested a motion to adjourn. Move to adjourn. 

PY/RB     

8. ADJOURNMENT Chair Bratton adjourned the meeting at 8:01 pm 
 



 
To: Planning Commission 

From:  GMF Land Use & Planning 

Date: July 25, 2020 

Re: Plan Review PR2020-10, SFH Construction, 13105 Iona Trail 

Background 

The Applicant is requesting the Planning Commission’s consideration for the construction of a 
new 800 SF residential structure. The builder has been working with Town Staff for a year on 
designs for a Code-compliant structure. Staff received Land Use Approval Applications for Plan 
Review, Grading and Erosion Control, and a Driveway with all fees on July 15, 2020. This scope of 
review on this agenda item is limited to the residential structure. The driveway permit, grading, 
and erosion control is included in a separate agenda item.  

Discussion 

Sec. 16-306. - R-1 10,000 Single-Family Residential District. 

The electronic file maintained by Town Hall, Official Town Zoning Map 2007, and the El Paso 
County Assessor’s Office show the 12,258 SF lot is zoned R-1 10,000 Single-Family Residential.  

The R-1 10,000 Zoning designation’s intent is two-fold:  (1) Encourage the development and 
continued use of the existing and/or surrounding residential uses without inducing undue 
hazards to public health or safety; and (2) Prohibit any uses which would substantially interfere 
with the use and enjoyment of existing and/or future residential use within the Town. The 
permitted principal use is single-family dwellings.  

Development requirements: 
(1) Minimum lot area: ten thousand (10,000) square feet. 
(2) Minimum frontage: one hundred (100) feet. 
(3) Minimum lot width: one hundred (100) feet at front building setback line. 
(4) Setback requirements: 

a. front, fifteen (15) feet 
b. side, ten (10) feet 
c. rear, ten (10) feet 

Site plan sheet P-1 shows the footprint of the two-bedroom, one-bathroom home in relation to 
the lot setbacks and area, which meet the minimum Zoning Code requirements. 

In the development requirements §16-306 (d)(f): Off-street parking: refer to Section 16-604. 
However, §16-604, does not exist in current code and may have been deleted during one of the 
many piecemeal amendments since the mid-90s. However, §16-601 – §16-603 focuses on 



parking regulation as it pertains to the development of accessory buildings, home occupation, 
and off-street parking. Whether the Code requires all construction in R-1 10,000 to create off-
street parking by building an accessory structure isn’t clearly written; given the err in reference 
and the language in §16-603(a)(1), Staff is maintaining that off-street parking is a consideration, 
but creating a garage on a small lot seems contrary to the character of small rural lots 

Off-street parking spaces shall be required as an accessory use for all uses in all zone districts in 
the Town. The required number of parking spaces shall be provided before development of the 
use; upon alteration or modification of a particular use, such as by the addition of beds, 
classrooms, employees, seats, square footage, students or units, the parking spaces provided 
shall be changed accordingly. 

Sec. 16-705. - Building permits; architectural review 

The purpose and intent [§16-705(a)]of this section, which serves as the focus for the 
Commission’s review, lists policy language that encourages, promotes, and improves, giving the 
Commission little guidance for making defensible decisions.  

Furthermore, §16-705(b), design review policies, are again, merely policy suggestions 
encouraging compatibility and harmony: there are two (2) areas of policy in which the Planning 
Commission directs its review. The guidelines for each of these policy areas are intended to 
provide general direction to an applicant coming before the Planning Commission. The only 
specific direction is given in §16-705(c)(1)a-c, which defines acceptable materials: 

a. The use of natural materials (wood and stone) for the exterior surfaces of all buildings and 
other structures is encouraged. Corrugated metal, plastic and fiberglass are prohibited. 

b. Vinyl and aluminum siding that meet the requirements of the Uniform Building Code are 
allowed, provided that the installation results in a uniform appearance absent of buckling 
and drooping. 

c. Exterior nontextured concrete block and concrete walls (nontextured) must be covered with 
a veneer, stucco or other surfacing. Paint is not an acceptable cover. 

d. All roof surfaces shall meet the requirements of the Uniform Building Code. Corrugated 
metal, plastic and fiberglass are not permitted. Class A roof coverings are recommended for 
fire resistance. Color selection to be approved prior to permit issuance. 

Section 16-705(d)- Procedure, directs the advisory body to review all proposed plans for 
character in harmony with the neighborhood, but nevertheless restricts its consideration to 
health and welfare of the community: 

Before approving any new residential, business, commercial, public or semi-public principal 
building and its accessory uses and structures, the Planning Commission shall find that the 
character of the proposed construction is in harmony with the established exterior architectural 
appeal of structures already located in the neighborhood and with approved public plans for the 
surrounding area so that existing and future land values within the Town will not be depreciated. 
The Planning Commission shall restrict its consideration in each case to the effect of the 
proposed construction on the health, safety, morals, and general welfare of the Town, keeping 
particularly in mind the unique characteristics of certain existing structures in the Town and that 
the prosperity of the entire Town is involved in the preservation of established sections of the 
Town. 

 



3 

Section §16-705(d)(2) gives the following specific criteria to be considered, but does not make 
an attempt to quantify nor qualify standards: 

a. Architectural compatibility; 
b. Bulk of the proposed building or structure in relation to surrounding buildings and land; 
c. Vehicular access and parking; 
d. Pedestrian access; and 
e. Relation to existing and future open space. 

All this is to say that without design standards nor meaningful guidance beyond setbacks, Staff 
concludes the development plans meet the intent of §16-705, architectural review.  

§16-312. - HO Hillside Overlay Zone  

The subject property would have been a on Scott Avenue, which is a platted ROW that was 
never improved; the address was most-logically determined to be on Iona Trail. The vacant lot is 
in the designated hillside overlay, per the 2007 Official Town Zoning Map. The description and 
purpose: to specify conditions for any type of development in areas where, due to topography, 
disturbance of the natural environment or for other reasons, problems are created which are 
detrimental to the public health, safety and welfare. It is the intent of these regulations to 
prevent physical damage to public and private property and to aid in the preservation of the 
natural heritage of the Town. 

The subject lot is a unique size and shape with hills and drainage making development a 
challenge with respect to run-off and erosion. As such, the property owner and general 
contractor gave considerable thought to creating appropriate siting and size while consulting a 
professional engineer for grading and erosion management. The 800-SF residential structure is 
sited on a relatively flat area with access off Iona down a driveway that will be graded to a 1% 
slope, toward the proposed home and 4% grade away from the structure. A grading and erosion 
control plan were submitted. The requirements of slope and suitability for Hillside Overlay Zone 
§16-714 will be confirmed by an engineer, hired by GMF staff at a cost to the Applicant. Third 
party engineering will review the site plan drawings, erosion control plan, and grading plan to 
confirm the requirements in GMF Zoning Code are met and that potential issues involving 
downslope private property and public ROW are mitigated.  

Typically, the Public Words Director would review new construction to comment on grading, 
trenching, and staging. In the absence of that position, the third party on-call engineer will 
comment for best practices and how heavy equipment will be mobilized and staged to minimize 
any damage to public roads and ingress/egress at the site. Preventative and corrective measures 
will need to be addressed by the Applicant; any damage to ROW shown to be a result of heavy 
equipment must be remediated by the Applicant and sub-contractors.  

Conclusion 

Staff has reviewed the site plans and recommends Plan Review approval of the 800 SF single 
family residence at 10330 Iona Trail with the following conditions: 

1. Third party on-call engineering review of the site plan for erosion control compliance, 
the cost of which will be passed-through to the Applicant; 

2. The builder and all sub-contractors must show proof of current GMF business license 





104'-6"
147° 0' 1"

94'-2 1/4"

141° 6' 1"

2
8
'-8

 1
/1

6
"

7
4
° 

3
5
' 1

3
"

56'-1 15/16"-15° 21' 48"

56'-4 3/16"-15° 14' 23"

71'-4 3/16"-13° 49' 44"

1
0
0
'

-1
0
4
° 

1
0
' 7

"

SB / L

SB / L

SB / L

SB / L

SB / L

SB / L

SB / L

SB / L

SB / L

SB / L

SB / L

SB / L

SB / L

SB / L

SB / L

SB / L

SB / L

SB / L

SB / L

SB / L

SB / L

SB / L

S
B

 /
 L

SB / L

SB / L

SB / L

SB / L

SB / L

SB / L

SB / L

SB / L

SB / L

SB / L

SB / L

SB / L

SB / L

SB / L

SB / L

SB / L

SB / L

SB / L

SB / L

SB / L

SB / L

S
B

 /
 L

S
B

 /
 L

S
B

 /
 L

S
B

 /
 L

S
B

 /
 L

S
B

 /
 L

S
B

 /
 L

S
B

 /
 L

S
B

 /
 L

52
'

49'

26 1/2'

33 1/2'

Leach Field

Septic Tank

10'

10'

10'

10'

10'

15'

15'

Driveway

P-1

R
E

V
IS

IO
N

 T
A

B
LE

N
U

M
B

E
R

D
A

TE
R

E
V

IS
E

D
 B

Y
D

E
S

C
R

IP
TI

O
N

SHEET:

SCALE:

D
R
A
W

IN
G

S
 P

R
O

V
ID

E
D

 B
Y
:

DATE:

7/10/2020

R
u

st
ic

 M
o

u
n

ta
in

 B
u

ild
e

rs
M

ic
h

a
e

l 
C

a
n

tr
e

ll-
 G

C
7

1
9

-4
3

3
-1

3
6

3

1/4" = 1ft

C
U

S
T
O

M
E
R
 I

N
F
O

R
M

A
T
IO

N
:

C
h

e
ri

 G
ra

h
a

m
1

3
1

0
5

 I
o

n
a

 A
ve

n
u

e
G

re
e

n
 M

o
u

n
ta

in
 F

a
lls

, 
C

O
 8

0
8

1
9

S
ite

 P
la

n



25'

3
2

'

25'

3
2

'

Foundation

R
E

V
IS

IO
N

 T
A

B
LE

N
U

M
B

E
R

D
A

TE
R

E
V

IS
E

D
 B

Y
D

E
S

C
R

IP
TI

O
N

SHEET:

SCALE:

D
R
A
W

IN
G

S
 P

R
O

V
ID

E
D

 B
Y
:

DATE:

7/10/2020

R
u

st
ic

 M
o

u
n

ta
in

 B
u

ild
e

rs
M

ic
h

a
e

l 
C

a
n

tr
e

ll-
 G

C
7

1
9

-4
3

3
-1

3
6

3

1/4" = 1ft

F-1

F
o

u
n

d
a

tio
n

 P
la

n

C
U

S
T
O

M
E
R
 I

N
F
O

R
M

A
T
IO

N
:

C
h

e
ri

 G
ra

h
a

m
1

3
1

0
5

 I
o

n
a

 A
ve

n
u

e
G

re
e

n
 M

o
u

n
ta

in
 F

a
lls

, 
C

O
 8

0
8

1
9



BCB39R

B
C

B
4
8
R B33RBCB39R

B
C

B
4
8
R B33R

W2436R

5
0

4
0
R

S
2
8

4
0
D

H
5
0

4
0
L
S

2840DH 2830DH 5068

5
0

4
0
L
S

5
0

4
0
R

S

5040RS30682840DH

2
6

6
8

2
8

6
8

2
6

6
8

2468

4x4 Post 4x4 Post

4x4 Post

10'-6 3/8" 14'-5 5/8"

3
2

'

25'

1
2

'-
8

 7
/1

6
"

7
'-
2

"
1

2
'-
1

 9
/1

6
"

7'-1" X 6'-11"

10'-1" X 9'-11"

10'-1" X 9'-8"

15'-7" X 10'-0"

13'-9" X 31'-1"
KITCHEN

BEDROOM

BEDROOM

BATH

PORCH

R
E

V
IS

IO
N

 T
A

B
LE

N
U

M
B

E
R

D
A

TE
R

E
V

IS
E

D
 B

Y
D

E
S

C
R

IP
TI

O
N

SHEET:

SCALE:

D
R
A
W

IN
G

S
 P

R
O

V
ID

E
D

 B
Y
:

DATE:

7/10/2020

R
u

st
ic

 M
o

u
n

ta
in

 B
u

ild
e

rs
M

ic
h

a
e

l 
C

a
n

tr
e

ll-
 G

C
7

1
9

-4
3

3
-1

3
6

3

1/4" = 1ft

A-1

F
lo

o
r 

P
la

n

C
U

S
T
O

M
E
R
 I

N
F
O

R
M

A
T
IO

N
:

C
h

e
ri

 G
ra

h
a

m
1

3
1

0
5

 I
o

n
a

 A
ve

n
u

e
G

re
e

n
 M

o
u

n
ta

in
 F

a
lls

, 
C

O
 8

0
8

1
9



North Elevation

R
E

V
IS

IO
N

 T
A

B
LE

N
U

M
B

E
R

D
A

TE
R

E
V

IS
E

D
 B

Y
D

E
S

C
R

IP
TI

O
N

SHEET:

SCALE:

D
R
A
W

IN
G

S
 P

R
O

V
ID

E
D

 B
Y
:

DATE:

7/10/2020

R
u

st
ic

 M
o

u
n

ta
in

 B
u

ild
e

rs
M

ic
h

a
e

l 
C

a
n

tr
e

ll-
 G

C
7

1
9

-4
3

3
-1

3
6

3

1/4" = 1ft

C
U

S
T
O

M
E
R
 I

N
F
O

R
M

A
T
IO

N
:

C
h

e
ri

 G
ra

h
a

m
1

3
1

0
5

 I
o

n
a

 A
ve

n
u

e
G

re
e

n
 M

o
u

n
ta

in
 F

a
lls

, 
C

O
 8

0
8

1
9

A-2

E
le

va
tio

n
s

South Elevation

Elevation Notes:

Siding: LP smart side
Fascia/trim: Black paint
Roof: Slate/charcoal tiled metal roof
Porch: Covered patio with timber accents



25'

3
2

'

25'

3
2

'

14" BCI 6000 @ 16"OC

Floor Framing/BCI Detail

R
E

V
IS

IO
N

 T
A

B
LE

N
U

M
B

E
R

D
A

TE
R

E
V

IS
E

D
 B

Y
D

E
S

C
R

IP
TI

O
N

SHEET:

SCALE:

D
R
A
W

IN
G

S
 P

R
O

V
ID

E
D

 B
Y
:

DATE:

7/10/2020

R
u

st
ic

 M
o

u
n

ta
in

 B
u

ild
e

rs
M

ic
h

a
e

l 
C

a
n

tr
e

ll-
 G

C
7

1
9

-4
3

3
-1

3
6

3

1/4" = 1ft

C
U

S
T
O

M
E
R
 I

N
F
O

R
M

A
T
IO

N
:

C
h

e
ri

 G
ra

h
a

m
1

3
1

0
5

 I
o

n
a

 A
ve

n
u

e
G

re
e

n
 M

o
u

n
ta

in
 F

a
lls

, 
C

O
 8

0
8

1
9

F
lo

o
r 

F
ra

m
in

g
 P

la
n

S-1



Wall Layer 1 - Viewed From OutsideFraming - West Wall

West Wall

Wall Layer 1 - Viewed From OutsideFraming - South Wall - Front of House

South Wall- Front of house

Wall Layer 1 - Viewed From OutsideFraming - North Wall Back of HouseWest WallNorth Wall- Back of house

North Wall- Back of house

Wall Layer 1 - Viewed From Outside

East Wall

R
E

V
IS

IO
N

 T
A

B
LE

N
U

M
B

E
R

D
A

TE
R

E
V

IS
E

D
 B

Y
D

E
S

C
R

IP
TI

O
N

SHEET:

SCALE:

D
R
A
W

IN
G

S
 P

R
O

V
ID

E
D

 B
Y
:

DATE:

7/10/2020

R
u

st
ic

 M
o

u
n

ta
in

 B
u

ild
e

rs
M

ic
h

a
e

l 
C

a
n

tr
e

ll-
 G

C
7

1
9

-4
3

3
-1

3
6

3

1/4" = 1ft

C
U

S
T
O

M
E
R
 I

N
F
O

R
M

A
T
IO

N
:

C
h

e
ri

 G
ra

h
a

m
1

3
1

0
5

 I
o

n
a

 A
ve

n
u

e
G

re
e

n
 M

o
u

n
ta

in
 F

a
lls

, 
C

O
 8

0
8

1
9

W
a

ll 
F

ra
m

in
g

 P
la

n

S-2



TR-1

TR-1

TR-1

TR-1

TR-1

TR-1

TR-1

TR-1

TR-1

TR-1

TR-1

TR-1

TR-1

TR-1

TR-2

TR-2

10'-6 3/8" 14'-5 5/8"

3
2

'

25'

1
2

'-
8

 7
/1

6
"

7
'-
2

"
1

2
'-
1

 9
/1

6
"

KITCHEN

BEDROOM

BEDROOM

BATH

PORCH

Roof Framing/Truss Detail

R
E

V
IS

IO
N

 T
A

B
LE

N
U

M
B

E
R

D
A

TE
R

E
V

IS
E

D
 B

Y
D

E
S

C
R

IP
TI

O
N

SHEET:

SCALE:

D
R
A
W

IN
G

S
 P

R
O

V
ID

E
D

 B
Y
:

DATE:

7/10/2020

R
u

st
ic

 M
o

u
n

ta
in

 B
u

ild
e

rs
M

ic
h

a
e

l 
C

a
n

tr
e

ll-
 G

C
7

1
9

-4
3

3
-1

3
6

3

1/4" = 1ft

C
U

S
T
O

M
E
R
 I

N
F
O

R
M

A
T
IO

N
:

C
h

e
ri

 G
ra

h
a

m
1

3
1

0
5

 I
o

n
a

 A
ve

n
u

e
G

re
e

n
 M

o
u

n
ta

in
 F

a
lls

, 
C

O
 8

0
8

1
9

R
o

o
f 

F
ra

m
in

g
 P

la
n

S-3



 
To: Planning Commission 

From:  GMF Land Use & Planning 

Date: July 23, 2020 

Re: Grading Permit GR2020-01 w/ECP; Driveway Permit DR2020-01 at 13105 Iona Trail 

Background 

The Applicant is requesting the Planning Commission’s recommendation to the Board of 
Trustees for approval of a Grading and Erosion Control Plan for the construction of a SFH and 
driveway at 10330 Iona Trail. Town Hall received a Land Use Approval Application, Site Plans, 
Grading Plan, and Erosion Control Plan with all fees on 15 July 2020.  

Discussion 

Sec. 17-81 – 17-91 – Grading 

Establishes that grading permits are necessary to protect the health, welfare, and safety of 
citizens against the potential damage caused by erosion from earth disturbing activities. 
Procedurally, §17-85(c) states The Planning Commission may approve, disapprove, table, or 
conditionally approve grading permits. A development detail plan should be submitted to the 
Planning Commission, the conditions of which are listed in §17-87. 

The Planning Commission may issue a grading permit with conditions, per §17-90, which 
includes hours and season of operation, restrictions on equipment and routes, and other details. 
Staff believes that the more stringent requirement of an ECP allows the Commission to defer to 
licenses professional engineers for recommendations on best practices. Inspections can be a 
requirement and may be prudent to ensure implementation of ECP is consistent from start to 
finish on the project.  

Sec. 17-92. - Erosion control plan. 

An erosion control plan shall be prepared for all land-disturbing activities of three hundred (300) 
square feet or fifty (50) cubic yards or more, using the grading plan as a base. The Planning 
Commission considers the erosion control plan and makes a recommendation to the Board of 
Trustees.  

Sec. 17-95 – Security required 

The Commission may require improvement security in several forms, outlined in (a) – (d).  

Sec. 17-98 – 17-102 – Driveway Permit  

The Planning Commission reviews driveway permits for approval and may ask for an engineer's 
written opinion and a current plat of survey when applicable.  



2 

Section 17-100 – Development details and regulations:   

(1) All driveways shall be constructed so that they will not interfere with the drainage 
system of the street. 

(2) The proposed driveway grades shall be indicated on the driveway plan or site plan. The 
driveway grade may not exceed fifteen percent (15%) within the public right-of-way and 
twenty percent (20%) between the right-of-way line and the front building line. 

(3) If the Planning Commission determines that the installation of a culvert is required at the 
entrance to the driveway, the minimum size shall be eighteen (18) inches in diameter 
with flared end sections or concrete headwalls. The minimum length of any culvert shall 
be five (5) feet greater than the width of the driveway. 

(4) The following widths are permitted for driveways: single-family, 10-feet minimum. 
(5) Runoff or sediment from erosion from a lot and driveway must enter approved 

drainageways, not onto a public street right-of-way. The applicant shall provide the 
Planning Commission with the methods by which this shall be accomplished. 

(6) The materials and thickness of the proposed driveway shall be indicated on the plan, and 
such materials shall be approved by the Planning Commission. The installed materials 
shall end within three (3) feet of maintained roadway. 

(7) It shall be the duty of the property owner to provide ongoing maintenance, including 
that portion of the driveway on a Town right-of-way. The Maintenance Department 
and/or Planning Commission shall have the option to inspect driveways periodically. 

Conclusion & Staff Recommendation 

Staff has reviewed the Applicant’s supplemental materials and recommends approval of grading 
permit GR2020-01, to include the approval of the driveway permit DR2020-01 in addition to 
recommending approval to the Board of Trustees for the Erosion Control Plan with the following 
conditions: 

1. The GMF on-call engineer review the grading/ECP for compliance with GMF Zoning and 
Subdivision Code so as to minimize erosion, run-off, and potential damage to private 
property and public ROW; 

2. The Applicant coordinates with GMF Public Works as to the route that construction 
crews and equipment will use to access the property and confirm any temporary road 
closures with the Marshal’s office; 

3. The Applicant confirms the proposed driveway meets 10-foot minimum width; 
4. The GMF on-call engineer review the driveway plan and make a recommendation as to 

whether a drainage culvert is necessary to preserve public ROW; 
5. The Applicant submit an authorized statement of financial responsibility and ownership. 

This statement shall be signed by the person financially responsible for the land-
disturbing activity or his or her attorney-in-fact. The statement shall include the mailing 
and street addresses of the principal place of business of the persons financially 
responsible and of the owner of the land and their registered agents; 

6. The general contractor and sub-contractors show proof of current GMF business license 

Once GMF on-call engineer concludes that all necessary amendments are made to the 
Grading/ECP and driveway plans, the ECP will go to the Board of Trustees for final approval. 
Staff will coordinate with PPRBD for electronic approval in the RBD portal.  

 



INDEX OF SHEETS
GEC1 Cover Sheet
GEC2 Grading and Erosion Control Plan
GEC3 Grading and Erosion Control Plan Details
GEC4 Grading and Erosion Control Plan Details

GENERAL NOTES

STATEMENTS

1. ALL DRAINAGE AND ROADWAY CONSTRUCTION SHALL MEET THE STANDARDS AND
SPECIFICATIONS OF THE CITY OF COLORADO SPRINGS/EL PASO COUNT DRAINAGE CRITERIA
MANUAL, VOLUMES 1 AND 2, AND THE EL PASO COUNTY ENGINEERING CRITERIA MANUAL.

2. CONTRACTOR SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR THE NOTIFICATION  AND FIELD LOCATION OF ALL
EXISTING UTILITIES, WHETHER SHOWN ON THE PLANS OR NOT, BEFORE BEGINNING
CONSTRUCTION. LOCATION OF EXISTING UTILITIES SHALL BE VERIFIED BY THE CONTRACTOR
PRIOR TO CONSTRUCTION. CALL 811 TO CONTACT THE UTILITY NOTIFICATION CENTER OF
COLORADO (UNCC).

3. CONTRACTOR SHALL KEEP A COPY OF THESE APPROVED PLANS, THE GRADING AND EROSION
CONTROL PLAN, THE STORMWATER MANAGEMENT PLAN (SWMP), THE SOILS AND
GEOTECHNICAL REPORT, AND THE APPROPRIATE DESIGN AND CONSTRUCTION STANDARDS
AND SPECIFICATIONS AT THE JOB SITE AT ALL TIMES.

4. IT IS THE DESIGN ENGINEER'S RESPONSIBILITY TO ACCURATELY SHOW EXISTING CONDITIONS,
BOTH ONSITE AND OFFSITE, ON THE CONSTRUCTION PLANS. ANY MODIFICATIONS NECESSARY
DUE TO CONFLICTS, OMISSIONS, OR CHANGED CONDITIONS WILL BE ENTIRELY THE
DEVELOPER'S RESPONSIBILITY TO RECTIFY.

5. CONTRACTOR SHALL SCHEDULE A PRE-CONSTRUCTION MEETING WITH GREEN MOUNTAIN
FALLS PLANNING AND INSPECTIONS, PRIOR TO STARTING CONSTRUCTION.

6. IT IS THE CONTRACTOR'S RESPONSIBILITY TO UNDERSTAND THE REQUIREMENTS OF ALL
JURISDICTIONAL AGENCIES AND TO OBTAIN ALL REQUIRED PERMITS, INCLUDING BUT NOT
LIMITED TO EL PASO COUNTY EROSION AND STORMWATER QUALITY CONTROL PERMIT
(ESQCP), REGIONAL BUILDING FLOODPLAIN DEVELOPMENT PERMIT, U.S. ARMY CORPS OF
ENGINEERS ISSUED 104 AND/OR 404 PERMITS AND COUNTY AND STATE FUGITIVE DUST
PERMITS.

7. CONTRACTOR SHALL NOT DEVIATE FROM THE PLANS WITHOUR FIRST OBTAINING WRITTEN
APPROVAL FROM THE DESIGN ENGINEER AND PCD. CONTRACTOR SHALL NOTIFY THE DESIGN
ENGINEER IMMEDIATELY UPON DISCOVERY OF ANY ERRORS OR INCONSISTENCIES.

8. CONTRACTOR SHALL COORDINATE GEOTECHNICAL TESTING PER TOWN OF GREEN MOUNTAIN
FALLS STANDARDS.

9. ALL CONSTRUCTION TRAFFIC MUST ENTER/EXIT THE SITE AT APPROVED CONSTRUCTION
ACCESS POINTS.

10. CONTRACTOR SHALL OBTAIN ANY PERMITS REQUIRED BY TOWN OF GREEN MOUNTAIN FALLS,
INCLUDING WORK WITHIN THE RIGHT-OF-WAY AND SPECIAL TRANSPORT PERMITS.

11. THE LIMITS OF CONSTRUCTION SHALL REMAIN WITHIN THE PROPERTY LINE UNLESS
OTHERWISE NOTED. THE OWNER/DEVELOPER SHALL OBTAIN WRITTEN PERMISSION AND
EASEMENTS, WHERE REQUIRED WITHIN THE PROPERTY LINE UNLESS OTHERWISE  NOTED.
THE OWNER/DEVELOPER SHALL OBTAIN WRITTEN PERMISSION AND EASEMENTS, WHERE
REQUIRED, FROM ADJOINING PROPERTY OWNER(S) PRIOR TO ANY OFF-SITE DISTURBANCE,
GRADING OR CONSTRUCTION.

12. ESTIMATED GRADING START: 07/20
ESTIMATED GRADING COMPLETION: 08/20

PREPARED BY:

Colorado Springs, Colorado  80904

1604 South 21st Street

(719) 630-7342

Kiowa
Engineering Corporation

VICINITY MAP

Design Engineer's Statement:

These detailed plans and specifications were prepared under my direction and supervision.  Said plans
and specifications have been prepared according to the criteria established by the County for detailed
roadway, drainage, grading and erosion control plans and specifications, and said plans and
specifications are in conformity with applicable master drainage plans and master transportation
plans.  Said plans and specifications meet the purposes for which the particular roadway and drainage
facilities are designed and are correct to the best of my knowledge and belief.  I accept responsibility
for any liability caused by any negligent acts, errors or omissions on my part in preparation of these
detailed plans and specifications.

_______________________________________                                 _______________
Todd Cartwright    PE #33365                                              Date
For and on behalf of Kiowa Engineering Corp.

Owner/Developer's Statement:

I, the owner/developer have read and will comply with of the requirements of the Grading and Erosion
Control Plans and all of the requirements specified in these detailed plans and specifications.

_________________________________________                               _______________
Cheryl Graham                                                                      Date

El Paso County:

County plan review is provided only for general conformance with County Design Criteria. The County
is not responsible for the accuracy and adequacy of the design, dimensions, and/or elevations which
shall be confirmed at the job site.  The County through the approval of this document assumes no
responsibility for completeness and/or accuracy of this document.

Filed in accordance with the requirements of the El Paso County Land Development Code, Drainage
Criteria Manual, and Engineering Criteria Manual as amended.

In accordance with ECM Section 1.12, these construction documents will be valid for construction for a
period of 2 years from the date signed by the El Paso County Engineer.  If construction has not started
within those 2 years the plans will need to be resubmitted for approval, including payment of review
fees at the Planning and Community Development Directors discretion.

_________________________________________                                   ____________
Jennifer Irvine, P.E.,                                                              Date
County Engineer / ECM Administrator

EL PASO COUNTY STANDARD NOTES
1. All drainage and roadway construction shall meet the standards and specifications of the City of

Colorado Springs/El Paso County Drainage Criteria Manual, Volumes 1 and 2, and the El Paso
County Engineering Criteria Manual.

2. Contractor shall be responsible for the notification and field notification of all existing utilities,
whether shown on the plans or not, before beginning construction.  Location of existing utilities
shall be verified by the contractor prior to construction.  Call 811 to contact the Utility Notification
Center of Colorado (UNCC).

3. Contractor shall keep a copy of these approved plans, the Grading and Erosion Control Plan, the
Stormwater Management Plan (SWMP), the soils and geotechnical report, and the appropriate
design and construction standards and specifications at the job site at all times, including the
following:

a. El Paso County Engineering Criteria Manual (ECM)
b. City of Colorado Springs/El Paso County Drainage Criteria Manual, Volumes 1 and 2
c. Colorado Department of Transportation (CDOT) Standard Specifications for Road and Bridge

Construction
d. CDOT M & S Standards

4. Notwithstanding anything depicted in these plans in words or graphic representation, all design
and construction related to roads, storm drainage and erosion control shall conform to the
standards and requirements of the most recent version of the relevant adopted El Paso County
standards, including the Land Development Code, the Engineering Criteria Manual, the Drainage
Criteria Manual, and the Drainage Criteria Manual Volume 2.  Any deviations from regulations and
standards must be requested, and approved, in writing.  Any modifications necessary to meet
criteria after-the-fact will be entirely the developer's responsibility to rectify.

5. It is the design engineer's responsibility to accurately show existing conditions, both onsite and
offsite, on the construction plans.  Any modifications necessary due to conflicts, omissions, or
changed conditions will be entirely the developer's responsibility to rectify.

6. Contractor shall schedule a pre-construction meeting with El Paso County Planning and
Community Development (PCD) - Inspections, prior to starting construction.

7. It is the contractor's responsibility to understand the requirements of all jurisdictional agencies
and to obtain all required permits, including but not limited to El Paso County Erosion and
Stormwater Quality Control Permit (ESQCP), Regional Building Floodplain Development Permit,
U.S. Army Corps of Engineers-issued 401 and/or 404 permits, and county and state fugitive dust
permits.

8. Contractor shall not deviate from the plans without first obtaining written approval from the
design engineer and PCD.  Contractor shall notify the design engineer immediately upon discovery
of any errors or inconsistencies.

9. All storm drain pipe shall be Class III RCP unless otherwise noted and approved by PCD.

10. Contractor shall coordinate geotechnical testing per ECM standards.  Pavement design shall be
approved by El Paso County PCD prior to placement of curb and gutter and pavement.

11. All construction traffic must enter/exit the site at approved construction access points.

12. Sight visibility triangles as identified in the plans shall be provided at all intersections.
Obstructions greater than 18 inches above flowline are not allowed within sight triangles.

13. Signing and striping shall comply with El Paso County Department of Public Works and MUTCD
criteria.  [If applicable, additional signing and striping notes will be provided.]

14. Contractor shall obtain any permits required by El Paso County Department of Public Works,
including Work Within the Right-of-Way and Special Transport permits.

15. The limits of construction shall remain within the property line unless otherwise noted.  The
owner/developer shall obtain written permission and easements, where required, from adjoining
property owner(s) prior to any off-site disturbance, grading, or construction.

Know what's below.
before you dig.Call

R

PREPARED FOR

Kiowa Project No. 20031
June 26, 2020

CHERYL GRAHAM
2112 RAMSGATE TERRACE

COLORADO SPRINGS,
COLORADO 80919-3174

GRAHAM RESIDENCE

13105 IONA
GRADING AND EROSION CONTROL PLAN

GREEN MOUNTAIN FALLS, COLORADO

Portions of Lots 10 & II Block 26, Third Addition to Green Mountain Falls

OLATHE ST.

HIGHW
AY 24

UTE PASS AVE

BELVEDERE
AVE.

HONDO AVE

CO
TTAGE ST

.

IO
N

A
AV

E.

HOW
ARD

ST.

SCOTTAVE.

FOUNTAIN CREEK

N
PROJECT SITE

TOWN CONTACT
TOWN HALL OFFICE

10615 UNIT B GREEN MOUNTAIN FALLS ROAD
GREEN MOUNTAIN FALLS

COLORADO
719-684-9414

PROJECT BENCHMARK: NGS BRASS CAP DESIGNATION "F 175" ON TOP
OF BOULDER NEAR THE INTERSECTION OF UTE PASS AVENUE AND
MESA ROAD IN GREEN MOUNTAIN FALLS - ELEVATION=7643.92'

SITE BENCHMARK: SURVEY CONTROL POINTS AS SHOWN HEREON. ALL
ELEVATIONS ARE BASE UPON NAVD88 VERTICAL DATUM.

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE: N.T.S.



GEC-2

Design:

TAC

EAK
TAC

Drawn:

Check:

Revisions:

20031

Date:

Project No.:

K
io

w
a

E
n

g
in

e
e

r
in

g
 C

o
r

p
o

r
a

ti
o

n

1
6

0
4

 S
o

u
th

 2
1

s
t 

S
tr

e
e

t
C

o
lo

ra
d

o
 S

p
ri

n
g

s
, 
C

o
lo

ra
d

o
  
8

0
9

0
4

(7
1

9
)

6
3

0
-7

3
4

2

GR
AH

AM
 R

ES
ID

EN
CE

13
10

5 
IO

N
A

GR
AD

IN
G 

AN
D 

ER
OS

IO
N

 C
ON

TR
OL

 P
LA

N
GR

EE
N

 M
OU

N
TA

IN
 F

AL
LS

, C
OL

OR
AD

O

EROSION CONTROL LEGEND

VTC VEHICLE TRACKING CONTROL

PROPERTY LINE

SSA STABILIZED STAGING AREA

SF SILT FENCE

LIMITS OF DISTURBANCE ( ac)

SCALE:  1"=10'

0 10' 20'

NOTES :

1. CONTRACTOR TO IDENTIFY MATERIAL AND
SOIL STOCKPILE AREA ON THE SWMP PRIOR TO
COMMENCEMENT OF MOBILIZATION.

2. CONTRACTOR TO IDENTIFY LOCATION OF
STABILIZED STAGING AREA ON THE SWMP
PRIOR TO COMMENCEMENT OF MOBILIZATION.

June 26, 2020

Know what's below.
before you dig.Call

R

ECB EROSION CONTROL BLANKET

SM SEED AND MULCH

CWA CONCRETE WASHOUT

Po
rt

io
ns

 o
f L

ot
s 1

0 
&

 II
 B

lo
ck

 2
6,

 T
hi

rd
 A

dd
iti

on
 to

 G
re

en
 M

ou
nt

ai
n 

Fa
lls

SF

AutoCAD SHX Text
S76°10'16"E  15.52'

AutoCAD SHX Text
18' PRIVATE ACCESS EASEMENT BOOK 3856, PAGE 602

AutoCAD SHX Text
ALLEY

AutoCAD SHX Text
(20' R.O.W.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
PORTION LOTS 10 & 11 BLOCK 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCOTT AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text
(40' R.O.W.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
PT. LOT 12

AutoCAD SHX Text
PT. LOT 11

AutoCAD SHX Text
PT. LOT 12

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 2

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 3

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 5

AutoCAD SHX Text
PT. LOT 4

AutoCAD SHX Text
PT. LOT 4

AutoCAD SHX Text
UNIMPROVED

AutoCAD SHX Text
PUEBLO AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text
IONA AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text
7920

AutoCAD SHX Text
7880

AutoCAD SHX Text
7878

AutoCAD SHX Text
7882

AutoCAD SHX Text
7884

AutoCAD SHX Text
7886

AutoCAD SHX Text
7888

AutoCAD SHX Text
7890

AutoCAD SHX Text
7892

AutoCAD SHX Text
7894

AutoCAD SHX Text
7896

AutoCAD SHX Text
7898

AutoCAD SHX Text
7900

AutoCAD SHX Text
7902

AutoCAD SHX Text
7904

AutoCAD SHX Text
7906

AutoCAD SHX Text
7908

AutoCAD SHX Text
7910

AutoCAD SHX Text
7912

AutoCAD SHX Text
7914

AutoCAD SHX Text
7914

AutoCAD SHX Text
7910

AutoCAD SHX Text
7918

AutoCAD SHX Text
7916

AutoCAD SHX Text
7914

AutoCAD SHX Text
7910

AutoCAD SHX Text
7894

AutoCAD SHX Text
7896

AutoCAD SHX Text
7898

AutoCAD SHX Text
7910

AutoCAD SHX Text
7900

AutoCAD SHX Text
7894

AutoCAD SHX Text
7892

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOW= 7902

AutoCAD SHX Text
x

AutoCAD SHX Text
x

AutoCAD SHX Text
x

AutoCAD SHX Text
x

AutoCAD SHX Text
x

AutoCAD SHX Text
x

AutoCAD SHX Text
x

AutoCAD SHX Text
x

AutoCAD SHX Text
x

AutoCAD SHX Text
BOW= 7901

AutoCAD SHX Text
x

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOW= 7902

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOW= 7902

AutoCAD SHX Text
x

AutoCAD SHX Text
x

AutoCAD SHX Text
x

AutoCAD SHX Text
BOW= 7899

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOW= 7906

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOW= 7910

AutoCAD SHX Text
BOW= 7903

AutoCAD SHX Text
BOW= 7807

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOW= 7906

AutoCAD SHX Text
x

AutoCAD SHX Text
x

AutoCAD SHX Text
BOW= 7809

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOW= 7910

AutoCAD SHX Text
BOW= 7805

AutoCAD SHX Text
x

AutoCAD SHX Text
x

AutoCAD SHX Text
x

AutoCAD SHX Text
x

AutoCAD SHX Text
x

AutoCAD SHX Text
x

AutoCAD SHX Text
FL EL =10.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
FL EL =10.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
FL EL =10.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
FL EL =10.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
RESIDENCE FFE 7911.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOW= 7906

AutoCAD SHX Text
BOW= 7905

AutoCAD SHX Text
BOW= 7909

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOW= 7910

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXTERIOR PORCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
x

AutoCAD SHX Text
09.9

AutoCAD SHX Text
STABILIZE SLOPE WITH DRY STACKED BOULDERS NBT SLOPE 1:1 TO 2:1

AutoCAD SHX Text
LEACH FIELD BY OTHERS

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEPTIC BY OTHERS

AutoCAD SHX Text
7910

AutoCAD SHX Text
7900

AutoCAD SHX Text
7902

AutoCAD SHX Text
7904

AutoCAD SHX Text
7906

AutoCAD SHX Text
7908

AutoCAD SHX Text
7914

AutoCAD SHX Text
7912

AutoCAD SHX Text
7910

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRIVEWAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
BLOCK WALLS 3' HEIGHT

AutoCAD SHX Text
x

AutoCAD SHX Text
x

AutoCAD SHX Text
x

AutoCAD SHX Text
x

AutoCAD SHX Text
09.4

AutoCAD SHX Text
09.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
12.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
09.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
09.6

AutoCAD SHX Text
x

AutoCAD SHX Text
4%

AutoCAD SHX Text
1%

AutoCAD SHX Text
1%

AutoCAD SHX Text
3:1

AutoCAD SHX Text
BOW= 7901

AutoCAD SHX Text
4'

AutoCAD SHX Text
4'

AutoCAD SHX Text
4:1

AutoCAD SHX Text
4:1

AutoCAD SHX Text
x

AutoCAD SHX Text
09.0



GEC3

Design:

TAC

EAK

TAC

Drawn:

Check:

Revisions:

20031

Date:

Project No.:

June 22, 2020

GR
AH

AM
 R

ES
ID

EN
CE

13
10

5 
IO

N
A

GR
AD

IN
G 

AN
D 

ER
OS

IO
N

 C
ON

TR
OL

 P
LA

N
GR

EE
N

 M
OU

N
TA

IN
 F

AL
LS

, C
OL

OR
AD

O

Po
rt

io
ns

 o
f L

ot
s 1

0 
&

 II
 B

lo
ck

 2
6,

 T
hi

rd
 A

dd
iti

on
 to

 G
re

en
 M

ou
nt

ai
n 

Fa
lls



GEC4

Design:

TAC

EAK

TAC

Drawn:

Check:

Revisions:

20031

Date:

Project No.:

June 22, 2020

GR
AH

AM
 R

ES
ID

EN
CE

13
10

5 
IO

N
A

GR
AD

IN
G 

AN
D 

ER
OS

IO
N

 C
ON

TR
OL

 P
LA

N
GR

EE
N

 M
OU

N
TA

IN
 F

AL
LS

, C
OL

OR
AD

O

Po
rt

io
ns

 o
f L

ot
s 1

0 
&

 II
 B

lo
ck

 2
6,

 T
hi

rd
 A

dd
iti

on
 to

 G
re

en
 M

ou
nt

ai
n 

Fa
lls



To: Planning Commission 

From: GMF Land Use & Planning 

Date:  July 23, 2020 

Re: Plan Review PR2020-11, Deck Replacement at 10775 Denver Street 

Background 

The Applicant is requesting the Planning Commission’s consideration for a deck 
repair/replacement of an existing rotting structure. Town Hall received a Land Use Approval 
Application, Site Plan, and Application fee on July 20, 2020.  

Discussion 

Sec. 16-306. - R-1 10,000 Single-Family Residential District. 

Setback requirements §16-306(d)(4): 
a. front, fifteen (15) feet
b. side, ten (10) feet
c. rear, ten (10) feet

The electronic file maintained by Town Hall, Official Town Zoning Map 2007, and the El Paso 
County Assessor’s Office show the 10,125 SF property is zoned R-1 10,000 Single-Family 
Residential. The subject property is in the designated Hillside Overlay Zone. 

Site plans are unclear; the Applicant confirmed setbacks to be meet the minimum Zoning Code 
requirements at 14 feet on the side and greater-than 15 feet on the front and rear. 

Sec. 16-705. - Building permits; architectural review 

The Zoning Code §16-705(d)(2) – Procedure 
As a minimum, the following specific criteria shall be considered by the Planning Commission 
a. Architectural compatibility;
b. Bulk of the proposed building or structure in relation to surrounding buildings and land;
c. Vehicular access and parking;
d. Pedestrian access; and
e. Relation to existing and future open space.

§16-312. - HO Hillside Overlay Zone

The subject property on Denver Street is in the designated hillside overlay, per the 2007 Official 
Town Zoning Map. The description and purpose: to specify conditions for any type of 
development in areas where, due to topography, disturbance of the natural environment or for 
other reasons, problems are created which are detrimental to the public health, safety and 



2 

welfare. It is the intent of these regulations to prevent physical damage to public and private 
property and to aid in the preservation of the natural heritage of the Town. 

As a matter of policy, when reviewed and permitted by a Pike’s Peak Regional Building paln 
reviewer and engineer, the construction of a 10’ x 24’ outdoor living structure, sitting at 9’ over 
grade, should not pose the threat to public health and safety. A safe, permitted deck may 
prevent the issues called-out in the steep slope overlay 16-312(a) by conserving the unique 
natural features by discouraging continuous foot traffic, thereby disturbing unstable slopes.   

Further discussion on erosion issues in the Hillside Overlay: the amount of earth that will be 
displaced during construction, while unspecified in the application, will be minimal for anchoring 
posts, thereby reducing erosion, runoff, and creating further problems for downslope uses.  

Conclusion 

Staff has reviewed the Applicant’s materials and recommends approval of the deck permit with 
the following conditions: 

1. The Applicant submit RBD Plan number for electronic approval 
2. The Applicant show proof of a current business license for contractors building the deck 

 









To: Planning Commission 

From: GMF Land Use & Planning 

Date: July 23, 2020 

Re: Plan Review PR2020-12, Deck Replacement at 6880 Colorado Street 

Background 

The Applicant is requesting the Planning Commission’s consideration for a deck 
repair/replacement of an existing 10’ x 20’ wood structure with Trex materials. Town Hall 
received a Land Use Approval Application, site plans, Letter of Explanation, topo map, survey, 
and application fee on July 22, 2020. The Applicant confirmed a current GMF business license for 
contractor services. 

Discussion 

Sec. 16-306. - R-1 10,000 Single-Family Residential District. 

Setback requirements §16-306(d)(4): 
a. front, fifteen (15) feet
b. side, ten (10) feet
c. rear, ten (10) feet

The electronic file maintained by Town Hall, Official Town Zoning Map 2007, and the El Paso 
County Assessor’s Office show the 18,338 SF property is zoned R-1 10,000 Single-Family 
Residential. The subject property is in the designated Hillside Overlay Zone. 

The Applicant’s explanation of setbacks as 31’ on the side and 147’ on the front, all setbacks are 
more-than adequate to meet minimum zoning requirements.  

Sec. 16-705. - Building permits; architectural review 

The Zoning Code §16-705(d)(2) – Procedure 
As a minimum, the following specific criteria shall be considered by the Planning Commission 
a. Architectural compatibility;
b. Bulk of the proposed building or structure in relation to surrounding buildings and land;
c. Vehicular access and parking;
d. Pedestrian access; and
e. Relation to existing and future open space.

§16-312. - HO Hillside Overlay Zone

The subject property on Colorado Street is in the designated hillside overlay, per the 2007 
Official Town Zoning Map. The description and purpose: to specify conditions for any type of 



2 

development in areas where, due to topography, disturbance of the natural environment or for 
other reasons, problems are created which are detrimental to the public health, safety and 
welfare. It is the intent of these regulations to prevent physical damage to public and private 
property and to aid in the preservation of the natural heritage of the Town. 

As a matter of policy, when reviewed and permitted by a Pike’s Peak Regional Building paln 
reviewer and engineer, the construction of a 10’ x 20’ outdoor-living structure should not pose 
the threat to public health and safety. A safe, permitted deck may prevent the issues called-out 
in the steep slope overlay 16-312(a) by conserving the unique natural features and discouraging 
continuous foot traffic, which could disturb unstable slopes over time.   

Further discussion on erosion issues in the Hillside Overlay: the amount of earth that will be 
displaced during construction, while unspecified in the application, will be minimal for anchoring 
posts, thereby reducing erosion, runoff, and creating further problems for downslope uses.  

Conclusion 

Staff has reviewed the Applicant’s materials and recommends approval of the deck permit 
without any conditions. Staff has the RBD Plan number for GMF Zoning approval.  



July 20, 2020 

 

Ms. Julia Simmons 

Department of Land Use Planning 

Town of Green Mountain Falls 

10615 Green Mountain Falls Road 

Green Mountain Falls, CO 80819 

 

Re: Deck Permit Letter of Explanation    

 

Dear Ms. Simmons: 

1) Description of proposed project – we are replacing our existing 10x20 wood deck with a new 
deck.  The existing deck is 20 years old and the wood is rotting in several places.  

a. Const. schedule – completion in August 2020. 
b. Zoning  - R1 per the Town’s 2019 Zoning Map 
c. We are going to install pressure treated deck joints, on 12” centers with Trex composite 

decking. The stairwell will be expanded from 32” wide to 36” inches wide to comply 
with PPRBD codes. 

d. There are no traffic vision obstructions. 
2) Site plan information 

a. There are several attachments to this submittal. 
i. A copy of the 1984 Survey of the property. 
ii. A copy of the site plan showing the fence with ties to the property lines 

iii. A copy of a 1994 topographic survey showing the driveway 
b. The house faces Colorado Street with the Indiana Right of Way to the rear. 
c. Setbacks for R-1 5000 zoning are: 

i. Front 15’ 
ii. Side 5’  

iii. Rear 10’ 

Let me know if you need additional information 

Sincerely,  

Rick Brewster 

6880 Colorado Street 

P. O. Box 628 

Green Mountain Falls, CO 80819 






























	2020-07-23_PR2020-10_Report.pdf
	graham-GEC.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	20031 GEC SHT1-1-Cover
	20031 GEC SHT2-GEC SHT 2
	24x36-RS
	11x17
	8x11 Portrait
	8x11 Landscape







